IFSL Marlborough Global Innovation Fund

Interim Report and Unaudited Financial Statements

for the six month period ended 31 October 2023



CONTACT INFORMATION

Registered Office

Marlborough House 59 Chorley New Road Bolton BL1 4QP

Authorised Corporate Director (ACD) and Registrar

Investment Fund Services Limited (IFSL) Marlborough House 59 Chorley New Road Bolton BL1 4QP

Investor Support: (0808) 178 9321 (FREEPHONE)

Authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Directors of IFSL

Andrew Staley (Non-Executive)
Allan Hamer
Dom Clarke
Helen Derbyshire
Helen Redmond
Sally Helston
Guy Sears (Independent Non-Executive)
Sarah Peaston (Independent Non-Executive)

Depositary

HSBC Bank plc 8 Canada Square London E14 5HQ

Authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and the Prudential Regulation Authority.

Investment Manager

Marlborough Investment Management Limited PO Box 1852 Croxall Lichfield Staffordshire WS13 8XU

Sub-investment Manager

Canaccord Genuity Asset Management Limited 88 Wood Street London EC2V 7QR

Authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Auditor

Ernst & Young LLP Atria One 144 Morrison Street Edinburgh EH3 8EX

CONTENTS	PAGE
AUTHORISED INVESTMENT MANAGER'S REPORT	1
AUTHORISED STATUS	3
GENERAL INFORMATION	3
AUTHORISED CORPORATE DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT	4
COMPARATIVE TABLE	5
SYNTHETIC RISK AND REWARD INDICATOR	6
PORTFOLIO STATEMENT	7
PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS	8
UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN	9
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS	9
BALANCE SHEET	10
NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	10

AUTHORISED INVESTMENT MANAGER'S REPORT

for the six month period ended 31 October 2023

Performance to 31 October 2023

	Six months	<u>1 year</u>	<u>3 years</u>	<u>5 years</u>
IFSL Marlborough Global Innovation Fund	(12.07)%	(14.04)%	(2.06)%	40.43%
IA Global Sector	(2.13)%	1.75%	18.46%	40.43%

External Source of Economic Data: Morningstar (P Accumulation - quoted price to quoted price).

The performance figures above are based on quoted prices and will, therefore, differ from the performance in the Comparative Table.

Capital at risk. Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future performance; the value of your investment and any income from it can go down as well as up. Performance returns are based on the net asset value with distributable income reinvested and takes account of all ongoing charges, but not entry charges. The past performance of this share class is calculated in sterling.

Investment commentary

The sub-fund's performance was disappointing during the reporting period with the P Accumulation units falling 12.07%. This compares to the performance of the benchmark*, being the Investment Association Global Sector, which returned -2.13% over the same period.

Market review

Central banks continued to increase interest rates in the first half of the period with the Federal Reserve increasing rates to 5.25%-5.50%, the Bank of England (BoE) to 5.25% and the European Central Bank to 4.00%. These moves, coupled with a spike in market volatility, put pressure on equities and bonds, with the key indicator, the US 10-year Treasury Bond, briefly yielding** 5.0% for the first time in many years. From having no alternative to equities if they sought a solid return, bonds suddenly provide a compelling alternative for investors with reduced risk.

In August the BoE Chief Economist, Huw Pill, indicated that UK interest rates may not rise further which was contrary to market expectations, however, he indicated the base rate could remain at 5.25% for a while to ensure inflation continues to fall and trends towards the 2.0% target. This echoed comments from US Federal Reserve Chair, Jerome Powell, who spoke at the central bank economic symposium in Jackson Hole where he indicated rates were likely to remain higher for longer given the strength of the US economy, but additional rate rises would be considered very carefully given some signs of economic weakness emerging. Whilst in isolation this could have been supportive to equities and bonds, the BoE also warned of corporate default risk and that the share of UK companies facing debt stress could rise to 50% by year end. There were also growth scares coming out of China, with prices falling, indicating a potentially deflationary environment emerging in the region; the Chinese authorities subsequently assessed potential economic stimulus measures.

At the end of the period equities and bonds continued their fall as investors sought safer assets such as cash following weak economic statistics globally and the outbreak of war between Israel and Hamas.

Sub-fund performance and activity

Very large technology stocks listed in the USA raced ahead, driven by the so called 'Magnificent 7', namely Alphabet, Amazon, Apple, Meta Platforms, Microsoft, Nvidia and Tesla, and left many smaller company share prices in their wake. As unit holders will know, the sub-fund has a bias towards smaller companies and we have been reluctant to invest in many of these enormous tech companies as we believe better long-term returns can be achieved through investing in smaller niche companies that can disrupt and innovate quickly.

At the time of writing, the sub-fund holds 39 actively traded stocks. The geographic exposure at the end of the period was approximately 37% UK, 29% US, 5% Japan, 21% Rest of World, with the balance held as cash.

Leading contributors during the half year were led by Kin & Carta, the digital transformation consultancy with operations in the Americas and Europe. Kin & Carta rose 34.0% in the period having featured as one of the noteworthy detractors in the sub-fund's previous annual commentary. Whilst the company has been impacted by a slowdown in client demand, private equity house, Apax Partners, saw value and bid for the company with an initial 110p per share cash offer. At the time of writing (07/12/2023), this offer has now been increased to 120p per share. IT reseller and emerging winner Bytes Technology rose 18.0 % during the period as the company benefitted from solid sales growth aided by Microsoft's ongoing dominance. With over 50% of Bytes' gross profit derived from reselling Microsoft's suite of software, Bytes has benefitted from the continuing digitisation trend and should benefit further as Microsoft's new Copilot Al assistant gains traction. Emerging winner, Vertex, the tax compliance software provider, rose 17.0%, with results confirming solid trends in growth and promising significant benefits from operational strength.

Prominent detractors during the period included FD Technologies, down 54.0% over the period. The company's latest report upset the market with the revelations that economic pressures have affected its consultancy and services division and that it will undertake more aggressive investment in the Kx database technology. UK telecoms equipment and network testing instrument maker Spirent Communications lost 46.0% in the period as customers deferred capital expenditure in the face of cost pressures and heightened overall uncertainty. IQE, the supplier of compound semiconductor wafers, fell 45.0% in face of continued weakness in the smartphone market, which caused it to cite downgraded expectations for a semiconductor industry recovery.

AUTHORISED INVESTMENT MANAGER'S REPORT

for the six month period ended 31 October 2023

Market outlook

The new reporting period has started well as easier financial conditions, namely lower bond yields, have driven equities and bonds higher and the US dollar and market volatility lower. Smaller companies have shown a marked improvement in performance, especially relative to larger companies in both the UK and globally. We believe there is scope for the trend to continue as market participants weigh up the likelihood that investors will have seen the peak of the current interest rate cycle. As to whether central banks have engineered an economic slowdown without a recession is to be confirmed but thus far inflation continues to fall, and unemployment levels remain low. Nevertheless, some argue the full effect of the recent interest rate increases have not been fully felt by economies and there are turbulent times ahead, but for now the economic data is showing signs of stabilisation.

Uncertainty remains, but we are of the view that 2024 will see improved smaller and medium-sized company share price performance, especially relative to larger companies which have dominated investor attention over the past two years.

Canaccord Genuity Asset Management Limited 12 December 2023

Portfolio changes

Largest purchases				Cost (£)
MercadoLibre PowerSchool Holdings Vertex Samsung Electronics Co GDR Gentrack Group Microsoft Verra Mobility IQE Acusensus Energy Recovery				1,050,753 1,034,169 528,177 492,292 478,039 412,463 291,355 283,699 245,387 243,049
Other purchases				979,089
Total purchases for the period				6,038,472
<u>Largest sales</u>				Proceeds (£)
Kape Technologies RWS Holdings Qualcomm Boku 'Reg S' Aviat Networks MYR Group UiPath Xylem Altair Engineering Idox				2,124,356 1,141,946 951,608 799,958 737,891 696,495 641,270 574,650 465,346 259,389
Other sales				688,284
Total sales for the period				9,081,193
Distributions A Accumulation (pence per share) Net accumulation paid 30 June Net accumulation paid 31 December	<u>Year 2023</u> - -	<u>Year 2022</u> - -	<u>Year 2021</u> - -	<u>Year 2020</u> - -
P Accumulation (pence per share) Net accumulation paid 30 June Net accumulation paid 31 December	- 1.1904	- 1.7378	-	- -

^{*} Benchmark - Comparator index for performance purposes.

^{**} Yield - The income from an investment, usually stated as a percentage of the value of the investment.

AUTHORISED STATUS

IFSL Marlborough Global Innovation Fund (the Company) is an open-ended investment company (OEIC) with variable capital incorporated under the OEIC Regulations. The Company is a UCITS scheme as defined in the Collective Investment Schemes Sourcebook (COLL). The Company is incorporated in England and Wales with the registration number IC000219 and is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority with effect from 28 March 2003. The shareholders are not liable for the debts of the Company.

The sub-funds of the Company are segregated by law under the Protected Cell Regime. In the event that one sub-fund in the Company is unable to meet its liabilities, the assets of another sub-fund within the Company will not be used to settle those liabilities.

The Company currently has one sub-fund; IFSL Marlborough Global Innovation Fund (the sub-fund).

GENERAL INFORMATION

Investment objective

The investment objective of the sub-fund is to grow the value of your holdings through capital growth, which is profit on an investment, over a period of at least 5 years. However, there is no certainty this will be achieved.

Investment policy

At least 80% of the sub-fund will invest in shares in companies listed globally.

The sub-fund can hold up to 75% in shares issued in any single country. It is expected that at least 50% of the sub-fund will be invested in a mixture of companies listed in North America or UK markets.

A minimum of 50% of the sub-fund will be invested in smaller companies, as defined by smaller companies indices in their respective country of listing at the time of the initial purchase.

Companies purchased will be those which the Manager considers to be innovative. These are typically companies the Manager believes to be operating in high-growth industries, with superior business models, which are significantly technology enabled and have distinctive intellectual property.

Following this investment philosophy, the sub-fund may invest in other securities which offer returns linked to the company performance, such as, preference shares, convertible bonds, listed warrants and up to 10% through exchange traded funds which themselves invest in company shares.

The sub-fund may, from time to time, hold shares in companies that become unquoted following investment, due to a delisting or other corporate event, for example. The sub-fund will not make new investment into the shares of companies that are unquoted.

The sub-fund is actively managed, which means the Investment Manager decides which investments to buy and sell and when. There are no further constraints to industry, sector or geography, other than the aforementioned constraints.

The sub-fund will normally hold a cash balance to enable ready settlement of liabilities (including redemption of shares) and efficient management of the sub-fund both generally and in relation to strategic objectives. In extreme market conditions this may be up to 20% of the sub-fund but it is anticipated this will be infrequent.

For cash management purposes, the sub-fund may also hold short dated government bonds.

Assessing performance

The Investment Association (IA), the trade body for UK investment managers, has created a number of 'sectors' as a way of dividing funds into broad groups with similar characteristics.

The sub-fund's investment policy puts it in the IA Global sector. You may want to assess the sub-fund's performance compared to the performance of this sector.

Rights and terms attaching to each share class

A share of each class represents a proportional entitlement to the assets of the Company. The allocation of income and taxation and the rights of each share in the event that the Company is wound up are on the same proportional basis.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Changes in prospectus

No significant changes have been made since the last report.

Up to date Key Investor Information Documents, Prospectus and Long Reports and Financial Statements for any fund within the ACD's range, can be requested by the investor at any time.

AUTHORISED CORPORATE DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT

This report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Collective Investment Schemes Sourcebook as issued and amended by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Allan Hamer Director

Investment Fund Services Limited 28 December 2023

Helen Redmond Director

4. Leamona

COMPARATIVE TABLE

A Accumulation shares Change in net assets per share	Period to 30.08.2023 ^D	Year to 30.04.2023	Year to 30.04.2022	Year to 30.04.2021
	pence	pence	pence	pence
Opening net asset value per share	779.93	860.41 (67.53)	1,096.16	581.61 527.46
Return before operating charges* Operating charges	(25.42) (4.21)	(67.53) (12.95)	(218.29) (17.46)	(12.91)
Return after operating charges*	(29.63)	(80.48)	(235.75)	514.55
Distributions on accumulation shares	(29.00)	- (00.40)	- (233.73)	-
Retained distributions on accumulation shares	-	-	-	-
Closing net asset value per share	750.30 ^E	779.93	860.41	1,096.16
* after direct transaction costs of:	0.30	0.44	1.74	3.97
Performance				
Return after charges ^A	(3.80)%	(9.35)%	(21.51)%	88.47%
Other information				
Closing net asset value (£)	_F	6,312,961	8,225,127	13,553,326
Closing number of shares	<u>_</u> F	809,427	955,954	1,236,434
Operating charges	1.59% ^{B,C}	1.59% ^B	1.66% ^B	1.72%
Direct transaction costs	0.08% ^C	0.05%	0.17%	0.53%
Prices (pence per share)				
Highest share price	801.66	872.93	1,187.41	1,127.63
Lowest share price	730.91	756.66	863.71	566.54
5 4 1 4 1	B. d. d.	Year to	Year to	Year to
P Accumulation shares	Period to			
Change in net assets per share	31.10.2023	30.04.2023	30.04.2022	30.04.2021
Change in net assets per share	31.10.2023 pence	30.04.2023 pence	30.04.2022 pence	30.04.2021 pence
Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share	31.10.2023 pence 842.14	30.04.2023 pence 922.03	30.04.2022 pence 1,165.93	30.04.2021 pence 613.90
Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share Return before operating charges*	31.10.2023 pence 842.14 (98.31)	30.04.2023 pence 922.03 (72.55)	30.04.2022 pence 1,165.93 (233.78)	30.04.2021 pence 613.90 561.29
Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share Return before operating charges* Operating charges	31.10.2023 pence 842.14 (98.31) (3.48)	30.04.2023 pence 922.03 (72.55) (7.34)	30.04.2022 pence 1,165.93 (233.78) (10.12)	30.04.2021 pence 613.90 561.29 (9.26)
Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share Return before operating charges*	31.10.2023 pence 842.14 (98.31) (3.48) (101.79)	30.04.2023 pence 922.03 (72.55) (7.34) (79.89)	30.04.2022 pence 1,165.93 (233.78)	30.04.2021 pence 613.90 561.29
Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share Return before operating charges* Operating charges Return after operating charges*	31.10.2023 pence 842.14 (98.31) (3.48) (101.79) (1.19) 1.19	30.04.2023 pence 922.03 (72.55) (7.34) (79.89) (1.74) 1.74	30.04.2022 pence 1,165.93 (233.78) (10.12) (243.90)	30.04.2021 pence 613.90 561.29 (9.26)
Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share Return before operating charges* Operating charges Return after operating charges* Distributions on accumulation shares	31.10.2023 pence 842.14 (98.31) (3.48) (101.79) (1.19)	30.04.2023 pence 922.03 (72.55) (7.34) (79.89) (1.74)	30.04.2022 pence 1,165.93 (233.78) (10.12) (243.90)	30.04.2021 pence 613.90 561.29 (9.26)
Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share Return before operating charges* Operating charges Return after operating charges* Distributions on accumulation shares Retained distributions on accumulation shares	31.10.2023 pence 842.14 (98.31) (3.48) (101.79) (1.19) 1.19	30.04.2023 pence 922.03 (72.55) (7.34) (79.89) (1.74) 1.74	30.04.2022 pence 1,165.93 (233.78) (10.12) (243.90)	30.04.2021 pence 613.90 561.29 (9.26) 552.03
Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share Return before operating charges* Operating charges Return after operating charges* Distributions on accumulation shares Retained distributions on accumulation shares Closing net asset value per share	31.10.2023 pence 842.14 (98.31) (3.48) (101.79) (1.19) 1.19 740.35	30.04.2023 pence 922.03 (72.55) (7.34) (79.89) (1.74) 1.74	30.04.2022 pence 1,165.93 (233.78) (10.12) (243.90) - - 922.03	30.04.2021 pence 613.90 561.29 (9.26) 552.03
Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share Return before operating charges* Operating charges Return after operating charges* Distributions on accumulation shares Retained distributions on accumulation shares Closing net asset value per share * after direct transaction costs of:	31.10.2023 pence 842.14 (98.31) (3.48) (101.79) (1.19) 1.19 740.35	30.04.2023 pence 922.03 (72.55) (7.34) (79.89) (1.74) 1.74	30.04.2022 pence 1,165.93 (233.78) (10.12) (243.90) - - 922.03	30.04.2021 pence 613.90 561.29 (9.26) 552.03
Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share Return before operating charges* Operating charges Return after operating charges* Distributions on accumulation shares Retained distributions on accumulation shares Closing net asset value per share * after direct transaction costs of: Performance Return after charges A Other information	31.10.2023 pence 842.14 (98.31) (3.48) (101.79) (1.19) 1.19 740.35 0.32	30.04.2023 pence 922.03 (72.55) (7.34) (79.89) (1.74) 1.74 842.14 0.47 (8.66)%	30.04.2022 pence 1,165.93 (233.78) (10.12) (243.90) - 922.03 1.84	30.04.2021 pence 613.90 561.29 (9.26) 552.03 - 1,165.93 5.05
Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share Return before operating charges* Operating charges Return after operating charges* Distributions on accumulation shares Retained distributions on accumulation shares Closing net asset value per share * after direct transaction costs of: Performance Return after charges A Other information Closing net asset value (£)	31.10.2023 pence 842.14 (98.31) (3.48) (101.79) (1.19) 1.19 740.35 0.32 (12.09)%	30.04.2023 pence 922.03 (72.55) (7.34) (79.89) (1.74) 1.74 842.14 0.47 (8.66)%	30.04.2022 pence 1,165.93 (233.78) (10.12) (243.90) 	30.04.2021 pence 613.90 561.29 (9.26) 552.03 1,165.93 5.05 89.92%
Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share Return before operating charges* Operating charges Return after operating charges* Distributions on accumulation shares Retained distributions on accumulation shares Closing net asset value per share * after direct transaction costs of: Performance Return after charges A Other information Closing net asset value (£) Closing number of shares	31.10.2023 pence 842.14 (98.31) (3.48) (101.79) (1.19) 1.19 740.35 0.32 (12.09)% 42,004,309 5,673,542	30.04.2023 pence 922.03 (72.55) (7.34) (79.89) (1.74) 1.74 842.14 0.47 (8.66)%	30.04.2022 pence 1,165.93 (233.78) (10.12) (243.90) 	30.04.2021 pence 613.90 561.29 (9.26) 552.03 1,165.93 5.05 89.92% 65,672,837 5,632,667
Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share Return before operating charges* Operating charges Return after operating charges* Distributions on accumulation shares Retained distributions on accumulation shares Closing net asset value per share * after direct transaction costs of: Performance Return after charges A Other information Closing net asset value (£) Closing number of shares Operating charges	31.10.2023 pence 842.14 (98.31) (3.48) (101.79) (1.19) 1.19 740.35 0.32 (12.09)% 42,004,309 5,673,542 0.84% B,C	30.04.2023 pence 922.03 (72.55) (7.34) (79.89) (1.74) 1.74 842.14 0.47 (8.66)% 48,861,312 5,802,017 0.84% 0.84%	30.04.2022 pence 1,165.93 (233.78) (10.12) (243.90) 	30.04.2021 pence 613.90 561.29 (9.26) 552.03 1,165.93 5.05 89.92% 65,672,837 5,632,667 0.97%
Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share Return before operating charges* Operating charges Return after operating charges* Distributions on accumulation shares Retained distributions on accumulation shares Closing net asset value per share * after direct transaction costs of: Performance Return after charges A Other information Closing net asset value (£) Closing number of shares	31.10.2023 pence 842.14 (98.31) (3.48) (101.79) (1.19) 1.19 740.35 0.32 (12.09)% 42,004,309 5,673,542	30.04.2023 pence 922.03 (72.55) (7.34) (79.89) (1.74) 1.74 842.14 0.47 (8.66)%	30.04.2022 pence 1,165.93 (233.78) (10.12) (243.90) 	30.04.2021 pence 613.90 561.29 (9.26) 552.03 1,165.93 5.05 89.92% 65,672,837 5,632,667
Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share Return before operating charges* Operating charges Return after operating charges* Distributions on accumulation shares Retained distributions on accumulation shares Closing net asset value per share * after direct transaction costs of: Performance Return after charges A Other information Closing net asset value (£) Closing number of shares Operating charges	31.10.2023 pence 842.14 (98.31) (3.48) (101.79) (1.19) 1.19 740.35 0.32 (12.09)% 42,004,309 5,673,542 0.84% B,C	30.04.2023 pence 922.03 (72.55) (7.34) (79.89) (1.74) 1.74 842.14 0.47 (8.66)% 48,861,312 5,802,017 0.84% 0.84%	30.04.2022 pence 1,165.93 (233.78) (10.12) (243.90) 	30.04.2021 pence 613.90 561.29 (9.26) 552.03 1,165.93 5.05 89.92% 65,672,837 5,632,667 0.97%
Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share Return before operating charges* Operating charges Return after operating charges* Distributions on accumulation shares Retained distributions on accumulation shares Closing net asset value per share * after direct transaction costs of: Performance Return after charges A Other information Closing net asset value (£) Closing number of shares Operating charges Direct transaction costs	31.10.2023 pence 842.14 (98.31) (3.48) (101.79) (1.19) 1.19 740.35 0.32 (12.09)% 42,004,309 5,673,542 0.84% B,C	30.04.2023 pence 922.03 (72.55) (7.34) (79.89) (1.74) 1.74 842.14 0.47 (8.66)% 48,861,312 5,802,017 0.84% 0.84%	30.04.2022 pence 1,165.93 (233.78) (10.12) (243.90) 	30.04.2021 pence 613.90 561.29 (9.26) 552.03 1,165.93 5.05 89.92% 65,672,837 5,632,667 0.97%
Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share Return before operating charges* Operating charges Return after operating charges* Distributions on accumulation shares Retained distributions on accumulation shares Closing net asset value per share * after direct transaction costs of: Performance Return after charges A Other information Closing net asset value (£) Closing number of shares Operating charges Direct transaction costs Prices (pence per share)	31.10.2023 pence 842.14 (98.31) (3.48) (101.79) (1.19) 1.19 740.35 0.32 (12.09)% 42,004,309 5,673,542 0.84% 0.08% 0.08%	30.04.2023 pence 922.03 (72.55) (7.34) (79.89) (1.74) 1.74 842.14 0.47 (8.66)% 48,861,312 5,802,017 0.84% ^B 0.05%	30.04.2022 pence 1,165.93 (233.78) (10.12) (243.90) 	30.04.2021 pence 613.90 561.29 (9.26) 552.03

^A The return after charges is calculated using the underlying investments bid prices.

Operating charges are the same as the ongoing charges and are the total expenses paid by each share class in the period. Direct transaction costs are the total charges for the period, included in the purchase and sale of investments in the portfolio of the sub-fund. These amounts are expressed as a percentage of the average net asset value over the period and the average shares in issue for the pence per share figures.

^B From 30 April 2021, the Operating Charges (or Ongoing Charges Figure) calculation has been extended to include, where relevant, charges incurred by closed-ended vehicles such as investment trusts.

^C These figures have been annualised.

^D By 30 August 2023, all A Accumulation shares were converted to P Accumulation shares, and the A Accumulation share class was closed.

^E Closing net asset value per share is based on the last available quoted price.

F Closing net asset value and closing number of shares as at 31 October 2023.

SYNTHETIC RISK AND REWARD INDICATOR (all share classes)

Lower risk						Higher risk
Typically lower rew	/ards				Туріс	cally higher rewards
1	2	3	4	5	6	7

This indicator aims to give you a measure of the price movement of the sub-fund based on past data. It uses historic returns over the last five years. If five years' data is not available, simulated data based on a representative portfolio is used.

The sub-fund has been measured as 6 because its investments have experienced high volatility in the past. During the period the synthetic risk and reward indicator has remained unchanged.

PORTFOLIO STATEMENT

as at 31 October 2023

ARCENTINA (30 April 2023 - 0.48%) 1,278,455 3.04 Total Argentina 1,278,455 3.04 AUSTRALIA (30 April 2023 - 1.30%) 386,164 0.92 4,550,011 Dropsuine 589,854 1.36 Total Australia 956,018 2.28 FRANCE (30 April 2023 - 3.24%) 14,850 589,854 1.36 Total Australia 956,018 2.29 FRANCE (30 April 2023 - 3.24%) 14,850 585,848,904 1.36 Total Australia 956,018 2.29 Total France 1,220,913 2.91 Total Germany 1,024,438 2.44 Total Germany 1,024,438 2.44 Total Germany 1,024,438 2.44 Total Germany 1,024,438 2.44 Total Japan 1,024,438 2.44 Total Japan 2023 - 1.12%) 1.32 JAPAN (30 April 2023 - 4.14%) 555,072 1.32 Total Japan 2,190,653 5.21 Total Japan 2,190,653 5.21 Total Japan 5,27,140 1.25 Total Japan 5,27,140 1.25 Total Japan 5,27,140 1.25 SINGAPORE (30 April 2023 - 1.00%) 527,140 1.25 SINGAPORE (30 April 2023 - 1.31%) 1.91 Samsung Electronics Co GDR 1,221,091 2.91 Total Singapora 6,24,756 1.49 Total South Korea 1,221,091 2.91 T	Holding or nominal value		Bid value £	Percentage of total net assets %
1,250 MercadoLibre 1,278,455 3.04 1,278,455 3.04 Total Argentina 1,278,455 3.04 1,278,455 3.04 Total Argentina 1,278,455 3.04 1,278,455 3.04 1,278,455 3.04 1,278,455 3.04 1,278,455 3.04 1,278,455 3.04 1,278,455 3.04 1,278,455 3.04 1,278,455 3.04 1,278,455,011 1,278,250 1.08 1		ADGENTINA (30 April 2023 0 48%)	L	/0
Total Argentina	1 250		1 278 455	3.04
AUSTRALIA (30 April 2023 - 1.30%) 1.000,000 Acusensus 366,164 0.92 4,550,011 Dropsule 7 total Australia 369,018 2.28 FRANCE (30 April 2023 - 3.24%) 14,850 SES-imagotag 1,220,913 2,91 Total France 1,220,913 2,91 Total Germany 1,024,438 2,44 Total Germany 1,024,438 2,44 Total Germany 1,024,438 2,44 Total Germany 1,024,438 2,44 Total Japan 2,190,653 2,51 Total Japan 2,190,653 2,71 Total Japan	1,230			
1,000,000 Acusensus 386,164 0.92 4.550,011 Dropsuite 5698,854 1.36 Total Australia 956,018 2.28 FRANCE (30 April 2023 - 3.24%)		Total Argentina	1,270,433	3.04
A,550,011 Dropsuite 569,854 1.36 1.05 1		AUSTRALIA (30 April 2023 - 1.30%)		
Total Australia 956,018 2.28 FANCE (30 April 2023 - 3.24%) 14,850 SES imagotag	1,000,000	Acusensus	386,164	0.92
FRANCE (30 April 2023 - 3.24%) SES-imagotag	4,550,011	Dropsuite	569,854	1.36
14,850 SES-imagotag		Total Australia	956,018	2.28
14,850 SES-imagotag		FRANCE (30 April 2023 - 3 24%)		
Total France 1,220,913 2.91	14 850		1 220 913	2 91
SERMANY (30 April 2023 - 2.15%) 250,000 Tonies 1,024,438 2.44 Total Germany 1,024,438 2.44 1,025 1,	14,000			2.91
STAPE 1.024,438 2.44 1.024,438 2.44 1.024,438 2.44 1.024,438 2.44 1.024,438 2.44 1.024,438 2.44 1.024,438 2.44 1.024,438 2.44 1.024,438 2.44 1.024,438 2.44 1.024,438 2.44 1.024,438 2.44 1.024,438 2.44 1.024,438 2.44 1.024,438 2.44 1.024,438 2.44 1.024,438 2.44 1.024,438 2.44 1.024,438 2.44 1.22 1.22 1.32 1.				
Total Germany				
ISRAEL (30 April 2023 - 1.12%) 2,832,000 BATM Advanced Communications 555,072 1.32 Total Israel 555,072 1.32 IAPAN (30 April 2023 - 4.14%) 32,000 Sony Group ADR 2,190,653 5.21 Total Japan 2,190,653 5.21 IAPAN (30 April 2023 - nill) 227,000 Gentrack Group 527,140 1.25 IAPAN (30 April 2023 - 1.00%) 527,140 1.25 IAPAN (30 April 2023 - 1.00%) SINGAPORE (30 April 2023 - 1.00%) SINGAPORE (30 April 2023 - 1.31%) 1.90 Samsung Electronics Co GDR 1,221,091 2.91 IAPAN (30 April 2023 - 43.96%) IAPAN (30,000	250,000			2.44
BATM Advanced Communications 555,072 1.32 1.01 Israel 555,072 1.3		Total Germany	1,024,438	2.44
BATM Advanced Communications 555,072 1.32 1.01 Israel 555,072 1.3		ISRAEL (30 April 2023 - 1.12%)		
Total Israel S55,072 1.32	2,832,000		555,072	1.32
Sony Group ADR	, ,			
Sony Group ADR				_
NEW ZEALAND (30 April 2023 - nil) 227,000 Gentrack Group Total New Zealand 527,140 1.25				
NEW ZEALAND (30 April 2023 - nil)	32,000			
227,000 Formation of Total New Zealand 527,140 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.28 (527,140)		Total Japan	2,190,653	5.21
227,000 Formation of Total New Zealand 527,140 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.25 (527,140) 1.28 (527,140)		NEW ZEALAND (30 April 2023 - nil)		
SINGAPORE (30 April 2023 - 1.00%) 32,256 Karoocoo 624,756 1.49	227,000		527,140	1.25
32,256 Karooooo 624,756 1.49 Total Singapore 624,756 1.49 SOUTH KOREA (30 April 2023 - 1.31%)		Total New Zealand		1.25
32,256 Karooooo 624,756 1.49 Total Singapore 624,756 1.49 SOUTH KOREA (30 April 2023 - 1.31%)		OINO A DODE (00 A . 11 0000 . 14 000(1)		
SOUTH KOREA (30 April 2023 - 1.31%) SOUTH KOREA (30 April 2023 - 1.31%) 1,190 Samsung Electronics Co GDR Total South Korea 1,221,091 2.91 UNITED KINGDOM (30 April 2023 - 43.96%) 1,720,500 4.09 2,000,000 Acto 2,000,000 3.81 622,793 Big Technologies 1,108,572 2.64 250,000 Bytes Technology Group 1,282,500 2.93 715,000 Pd4 Solutions 1,02 3,393,984 Idox 2,090,694 4.98 8,343,495 IQE 1,138,053 2.72 1,206,817 Kin and Carta 1,281,640 3.05 1,100,000 MusicMagpie 220,000 0.52 1,335,800 3.30	20.050		004.750	4.40
SOUTH KOREA (30 April 2023 - 1.31%) 1,190 Samsung Electronics Co GDR 1,221,091 2.91 Total South Korea 1,221,091 2.91 UNITED KINGDOM (30 April 2023 - 43.96%)	32,250			
1,190 Samsung Electronics Co GDR Total South Korea 1,221,091 2.91 UNITED KINGDOM (30 April 2023 - 43.96%) UNITED KINGDOM (30 April 2023 - 43.96%) 310,000 accesso Technology Group 1,720,500 4.09 2,000,000 ActiveOps 1,600,000 3.81 622,793 Big Technologies 1,108,572 2.64 250,000 Bytes Technology Group 1,230,500 2.93 715,000 D4t4 Solutions 1,108,250 2.64 50,000 FD Technologies 428,500 1.02 3,393,984 Idox 2,090,694 4.98 8,343,495 IQE 1,138,053 2.72 1,206,817 Kin and Carta 1,281,640 3.05 1,100,000 MusicMagpie 220,000 0.52 1,300,000 NCC Group 1,385,800 3.30 335,000 Playtech 1,315,210 3.13 1,125,000 Reach 866,984 2.06 4891,500 Spirent Communications 866,984 2.06 120,000 Water Intelligence 390,000		Total Siligapore	024,730	1.49
Total South Korea 1,221,091 2.91 UNITED KINGDOM (30 April 2023 - 43.96%) 310,000 accesso Technology Group 1,720,500 4.09 2,000,000 ActiveOps 1,600,000 3.81 622,793 Big Technologies 1,108,572 2.64 250,000 Bytes Technology Group 1,230,500 2.93 715,000 D4t4 Solutions 1,108,250 2.64 50,000 FD Technologies 428,500 1.02 3,393,984 Idox 2,090,694 4.98 8,343,495 IQE 1,138,053 2.72 1,206,817 Kin and Carta 1,281,640 3.05 1,100,000 MusicMagpie 220,000 0.52 1,300,000 NCC Group 1,385,800 3.30 335,000 Playtech 1,315,210 3.13 1,125,000 Reach 857,813 2.04 891,500 Spirent Communications 866,984 2.06 120,000 Water Intelligence 390,000 0.93 8,623,294 Xeros Technology Group 137,973 0.33		SOUTH KOREA (30 April 2023 - 1.31%)		
UNITED KINGDOM (30 April 2023 - 43.96%) 310,000 accesso Technology Group 1,720,500 4.09 2,000,000 ActiveOps 1,600,000 3.81 622,793 Big Technologies 1,108,572 2.64 250,000 Bytes Technology Group 1,230,500 2.93 715,000 D4t4 Solutions 1,108,250 2.64 50,000 FD Technologies 428,500 1.02 3,393,984 Idox 2,090,694 4.98 8,343,495 IQE 1,138,053 2.72 1,206,817 Kin and Carta 1,281,640 3.05 1,100,000 MusicMagpie 220,000 0.52 1,300,000 NCC Group 1,385,800 3.30 335,000 Playtech 1,315,210 3.13 1,125,000 Reach 857,813 2.04 891,500 Spirent Communications 866,984 2.06 120,000 Water Intelligence 390,000 0.93 8,623,294 Xeros Technology Group 137,973 0.33	1,190	Samsung Electronics Co GDR	1,221,091	2.91
310,000 accesso Technology Group 1,720,500 4.09 2,000,000 ActiveOps 1,600,000 3.81 622,793 Big Technologies 1,108,572 2.64 250,000 Bytes Technology Group 1,230,500 2.93 715,000 D4t4 Solutions 1,108,250 2.64 50,000 FD Technologies 428,500 1.02 3,393,984 Idox 2,090,694 4.98 8,343,495 IQE 1,138,053 2.72 1,206,817 Kin and Carta 1,281,640 3.05 1,100,000 MusicMagpie 220,000 0.52 1,300,000 NCC Group 1,385,800 3.30 335,000 Playtech 1,315,210 3.13 1,125,000 Reach 857,813 2.04 891,500 Spirent Communications 866,984 2.06 120,000 Water Intelligence 390,000 0.93 8,623,294 Xeros Technology Group 137,973 0.33		Total South Korea	1,221,091	2.91
310,000 accesso Technology Group 1,720,500 4.09 2,000,000 ActiveOps 1,600,000 3.81 622,793 Big Technologies 1,108,572 2.64 250,000 Bytes Technology Group 1,230,500 2.93 715,000 D4t4 Solutions 1,108,250 2.64 50,000 FD Technologies 428,500 1.02 3,393,984 Idox 2,090,694 4.98 8,343,495 IQE 1,138,053 2.72 1,206,817 Kin and Carta 1,281,640 3.05 1,100,000 MusicMagpie 220,000 0.52 1,300,000 NCC Group 1,385,800 3.30 335,000 Playtech 1,315,210 3.13 1,125,000 Reach 857,813 2.04 891,500 Spirent Communications 866,984 2.06 120,000 Water Intelligence 390,000 0.93 8,623,294 Xeros Technology Group 137,973 0.33		HINITED KINGDOM (20 April 2022 42 06%)		
2,000,000 ActiveOps 1,600,000 3.81 622,793 Big Technologies 1,108,572 2.64 250,000 Bytes Technology Group 1,230,500 2.93 715,000 D4t4 Solutions 1,108,250 2.64 50,000 FD Technologies 428,500 1.02 3,393,984 Idox 2,090,694 4.98 8,343,495 IQE 1,138,053 2.72 1,206,817 Kin and Carta 1,281,640 3.05 1,100,000 MusicMagpie 220,000 0.52 1,300,000 NCC Group 1,385,800 3.30 335,000 Playtech 1,315,210 3.13 1,125,000 Reach 857,813 2.04 891,500 Spirent Communications 866,984 2.06 120,000 Water Intelligence 390,000 0.93 8,623,294 Xeros Technology Group 137,973 0.33	310 000		1 720 500	4 00
622,793 Big Technologies 1,108,572 2.64 250,000 Bytes Technology Group 1,230,500 2.93 715,000 D4t4 Solutions 1,108,250 2.64 50,000 FD Technologies 428,500 1.02 3,393,984 Idox 2,090,694 4.98 8,343,495 IQE 1,138,053 2.72 1,206,817 Kin and Carta 1,281,640 3.05 1,100,000 MusicMagpie 220,000 0.52 1,300,000 NCC Group 1,385,800 3.30 335,000 Playtech 1,315,210 3.13 1,125,000 Reach 857,813 2.04 891,500 Spirent Communications 866,984 2.06 120,000 Water Intelligence 390,000 0.93 8,623,294 Xeros Technology Group 137,973 0.33				
250,000Bytes Technology Group1,230,5002.93715,000D4t4 Solutions1,108,2502.6450,000FD Technologies428,5001.023,393,984Idox2,090,6944.988,343,495IQE1,138,0532.721,206,817Kin and Carta1,281,6403.051,100,000MusicMagpie220,0000.521,300,000NCC Group1,385,8003.30335,000Playtech1,315,2103.131,125,000Reach857,8132.04891,500Spirent Communications866,9842.06120,000Water Intelligence390,0000.938,623,294Xeros Technology Group137,9730.33				
715,000 D4t4 Solutions 1,108,250 2.64 50,000 FD Technologies 428,500 1.02 3,393,984 Idox 2,090,694 4.98 8,343,495 IQE 1,138,053 2.72 1,206,817 Kin and Carta 1,281,640 3.05 1,100,000 MusicMagpie 220,000 0.52 1,300,000 NCC Group 1,385,800 3.30 335,000 Playtech 1,315,210 3.13 1,125,000 Reach 857,813 2.04 891,500 Spirent Communications 866,984 2.06 120,000 Water Intelligence 390,000 0.93 8,623,294 Xeros Technology Group 137,973 0.33				
50,000 FD Technologies 428,500 1.02 3,393,984 Idox 2,090,694 4.98 8,343,495 IQE 1,138,053 2.72 1,206,817 Kin and Carta 1,281,640 3.05 1,100,000 MusicMagpie 220,000 0.52 1,300,000 NCC Group 1,385,800 3.30 335,000 Playtech 1,315,210 3.13 1,125,000 Reach 857,813 2.04 891,500 Spirent Communications 866,984 2.06 120,000 Water Intelligence 390,000 0.93 8,623,294 Xeros Technology Group 137,973 0.33				
3,393,984 Idox 2,090,694 4.98 8,343,495 IQE 1,138,053 2.72 1,206,817 Kin and Carta 1,281,640 3.05 1,100,000 MusicMagpie 220,000 0.52 1,300,000 NCC Group 1,385,800 3.30 335,000 Playtech 1,315,210 3.13 1,125,000 Reach 857,813 2.04 891,500 Spirent Communications 866,984 2.06 120,000 Water Intelligence 390,000 0.93 8,623,294 Xeros Technology Group 137,973 0.33				
8,343,495 IQE 1,138,053 2.72 1,206,817 Kin and Carta 1,281,640 3.05 1,100,000 MusicMagpie 220,000 0.52 1,300,000 NCC Group 1,385,800 3.30 335,000 Playtech 1,315,210 3.13 1,125,000 Reach 857,813 2.04 891,500 Spirent Communications 866,984 2.06 120,000 Water Intelligence 390,000 0.93 8,623,294 Xeros Technology Group 137,973 0.33				
1,206,817 Kin and Carta 1,281,640 3.05 1,100,000 MusicMagpie 220,000 0.52 1,300,000 NCC Group 1,385,800 3.30 335,000 Playtech 1,315,210 3.13 1,125,000 Reach 857,813 2.04 891,500 Spirent Communications 866,984 2.06 120,000 Water Intelligence 390,000 0.93 8,623,294 Xeros Technology Group 137,973 0.33				
1,100,000 MusicMagpie 220,000 0.52 1,300,000 NCC Group 1,385,800 3.30 335,000 Playtech 1,315,210 3.13 1,125,000 Reach 857,813 2.04 891,500 Spirent Communications 866,984 2.06 120,000 Water Intelligence 390,000 0.93 8,623,294 Xeros Technology Group 137,973 0.33				
1,300,000 NCC Group 1,385,800 3.30 335,000 Playtech 1,315,210 3.13 1,125,000 Reach 857,813 2.04 891,500 Spirent Communications 866,984 2.06 120,000 Water Intelligence 390,000 0.93 8,623,294 Xeros Technology Group 137,973 0.33				
335,000 Playtech 1,315,210 3.13 1,125,000 Reach 857,813 2.04 891,500 Spirent Communications 866,984 2.06 120,000 Water Intelligence 390,000 0.93 8,623,294 Xeros Technology Group 137,973 0.33				
1,125,000 Reach 857,813 2.04 891,500 Spirent Communications 866,984 2.06 120,000 Water Intelligence 390,000 0.93 8,623,294 Xeros Technology Group 137,973 0.33				
891,500 Spirent Communications 866,984 2.06 120,000 Water Intelligence 390,000 0.93 8,623,294 Xeros Technology Group 137,973 0.33				
120,000 Water Intelligence 390,000 0.93 8,623,294 Xeros Technology Group 137,973 0.33	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
8,623,294 Xeros Technology Group				
Total United Kingdom 16,880,489 40.19				0.33
		Total United Kingdom	16,880,489	40.19

PORTFOLIO STATEMENT

as at 31 October 2023

Holding or nominal value		Bid value £	Percentage of total net assets %
	UNITED STATES (30 April 2023 - 28.83%)		
34,500	Altair Engineering	1,764,951	4.20
7,000	Analog Devices	907,698	2.16
40,000	Aviat Networks	879,914	2.09
1,375,000	Boku 'Reg S'	1,856,250	4.42
11,000	Energy Recovery	137,806	0.33
1,540	Microsoft	429,113	1.02
19,000	MYR Group	1,813,871	4.32
65,000	PowerSchool Holdings	1,066,636	2.54
25,000	Rover Group	132,696	0.31
18,000	Verra Mobility	293,299	0.70
80,000	Vertex	1,595,648	3.80
22,000	Xylem	1,696,102	4.04
	Total United States	12,573,984	29.93
	UNQUOTED SECURITIES (30 April 2023 - 0.00%)		
64,600	NexJ Health ^A	-	-
7,721,044	Xeros Technology Group Warrants (£0.05) 21.04.24 ^B		
	Total Unquoted Securities	-	
	Portfolio of investments	39,053,009	92.97
	Net other assets	2,951,300	7.03
	Total net assets	42,004,309	100.00

All investments are listed on recognised stock exchanges and are approved securities within the meaning of the FCA rules unless otherwise stated.

PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS

for the six month period ended 31 October 2023	£
Total purchases cost, including transaction charges	6,038,472
Total sales proceeds, net of transaction charges	9,081,193

^A NexJ Health is unlisted and valued at zero, based on the latest information received.

^B Xeros Technology Group Warrants are unlisted and valued at zero, based on the latest information received.

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN

for the six month period ended 31 October 2023

	31 October 2023		31 Octob	er 2022
	£	£	£	£
Income:				
Net capital losses		(6,153,944)		(4,769,693)
Revenue	302,549		404,162	
Expenses	(218,191)		(295,410)	
Net revenue before taxation	84,358		108,752	
Taxation	(9,038)		(14,397)	
Net revenue after taxation		75,320		94,355
Total return before distributions		(6,078,624)		(4,675,338)
Distributions		(75,320)		(107,809)
Change in net assets attributable to shareholders from investment activities		(6,153,944)		(4,783,147)

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

for the six month period ended 31 October 2023

	31 October 2023		31 October	ober 2022	
	£	£	£	£	
Opening net assets attributable to shareholders	А	55,174,273	Α	70,598,569	
Amounts receivable on issue of shares Amounts payable on cancellation of shares Amounts payable on share class conversions	6,356,419 (13,443,377) -	(7,086,958)	457,376 (6,659,383) (23)	(6,202,030)	
Dilution adjustment		3,398		-	
Change in net assets attributable to shareholders from investment activities		(6,153,944)		(4,783,147)	
Retained distribution on accumulation shares		67,540		106,108	
Closing net assets attributable to shareholders	- -	42,004,309	A	59,719,500	

^A These figures are not the same as the comparatives are taken from the preceding interim period and not the last final accounts.

BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 October 2023

	31 October 2023	30 April 2023
	£	£
Assets:		
Fixed Assets: Investments	39,053,009	48,295,838
IIIVESTITIETIUS	39,033,009	40,293,030
Current Assets:		
Debtors	281,416	99,934
Cash and bank balances	3,428,414	7,036,693
Total assets	42,762,839	55,432,465
Liabilities:		
Creditors:		
Bank overdrafts	-	24,761
Other creditors	758,530	233,431
Total liabilities	758,530	258,192
Net assets attributable to shareholders	42,004,309	55,174,273

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the six month period ended 31 October 2023

Basis for preparation

The interim financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 102 and in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) for UK Authorised Funds issued by the Investment Management Association (renamed to the Investment Association) in May 2014, and amended in June 2017.

The interim financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the sub-fund. Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest pound.

The interim financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention, modified to include the revaluation of investments and certain financial instruments at fair value.

Accounting policies

The accounting policies applied are consistent with those of the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2023 and are described in those annual financial statements.

The investments of the sub-fund have been valued at their fair value at close of business on 31 October 2023.

Investment Fund Services Limited Marlborough House, 59 Chorley New Road, Bolton, BL1 4QP

Investor Support: (0808) 178 9321 (FREEPHONE)

Email. ifslclientsupport@ifslfunds.com

Website. www.ifslfunds.com

Fax. (01204) 533 045

Investment Fund Services Limited Registered in England No. 06110770 Authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and a member of The Investment Association.

Investment Fund Services